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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
to

RFQ No. 901570
for

Fire & Intrusion Alarm Services
Summary of Q&A Submitted 

Networking/Bidders Conferences were held on December 5, 2017 and December 6, 2017

	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions from the Bidders Conferences and Written Questions

Q1) Page 17 of the RFQ, Section M (AWARD), Item 3 states:
As a result of the County’s commitment to advance the economic opportunities of these businesses, Bidders must meet the County’s Small and Emerging Locally Owned Business requirements in order to be considered for the contract award.
Will the County consider awarding to a non-Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) entity?
A1) Yes, however bidders not meeting the definition of a SLEB must subcontract with one or more County certified SLEBs for at least twenty percent (20%) of the total bid amount in order to be considered for contract award.
Q2) Can the County provide a list of all devices and quantities currently installed at each facility?
A2) Yes, a list of all devices for all locations are attached to Addendum 4 via pdf.  
Q3) Can the County indicate the number of floors in each building, which buildings have fire pumps, if they are electric or diesel, and whether they have an in-line flow meter?

A3) Yes, these details are included in the device list attached to Addendum 4 via pdf.
Q4) If contractors are responsible for covering the cost of lifts, can the County provide the ceiling heights?

A4) The County has indicated if a building requires an 8’ ladder or a lift for ceiling access within the device lists attached to Addendum 4 via pdf.
Q5) Since the C-10 Electrical Contractors’ License supersedes the C-7 license accordance to industry standard, can a bidder just submit the C-10 license?
A5) Yes, bidders may submit their C-10 license in place of the C-7 license. 
Q6) Can the County advise if the C-16 (Fire Protection/Sprinkler) license is to be provided by the bidder or the employee performing the services? 
A6) The C-16 license requirement must be met by the bidder, not the individual employees.
Q7) Can the County provide the make and model numbers for the fire alarm control panels at each site?
A7) The County has provided this information in the revised building list attached to Addendum 4 via pdf.   
Q8) Can the County provide the make and model numbers of the digital dialers for fire alarm systems and burg/intrusion systems?
A8) The County is unable to provide this information at this time.
Q9) Can the County identify any buildings that have a check-in procedure that exceeds 10 minutes?
A9) There are no buildings that exceeds a 10 minute check-in.  The County requires prior arrangements be made for access to all buildings as the County is a restricted access environment.
Q10) Will the County provide a dedicated staff member to provide access to all areas of the building with Fire alarm and sprinkler coverage occurring on the same day of inspections?
A10) Yes, the County will provide a dedicated staff member. 

Q11) Can the County indicate whether testing can be performed during normal hours (Monday- Friday 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM) or after hours (Monday- Friday 6:00 PM to 2:00 AM or Saturdays)
A11) Service hours are provided on the revised building list attached to Addendum 4 via pdf. 
Q12) Can the County indicate which buildings, if any, will have 2-3 dedicated parking spots for technicians on the day of test and inspections?
A12) The County does not provide dedicated parking spots for Contractors at any County building.  
Q13) Can the County provide the device quantities tied into each fire alarm system?  Can the devices list include the number of:

a. Smoke detectors 

b. Duct detectors 

c. Heat detectors

d. Beam detectors

e. Pull stations 

f. Power supplies 

g. Fire alarm panels 

h. Remote annunciator 

i. Water flow switches 

j. Tamper switches 

k. Door holders 

l. Fire hydrants

m. Dry sprinkler risers

n. Wet Sprinkler risers
o. Batteries

p. Notification devices

q. Fire pumps (Please specify whether they are electric or diesel as that will determine the code required frequency of testing)

A13) Yes, this information is within the device list attached to Addendum 4 via pdf. 
Q14) Page 7 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1, letter n(5) states:
Sensitivity Testing and Cleaning of system smoke detectors per current NFPA standards.

There is no cleaning code requirement on cleaning, only on sensitivity.  Is there a specific frequency that the County would prefer to have the devices cleaned?

A14) The County is seeking these devices to be cleaned in accordance with NFPA and as-needed.
Q15) Page 7 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1, letter o states:
Contractor shall perform inspection services on the following Fire Alarm Equipment per current NFPA standards.

Will the inspections match up with what is required per NFPA 71 2016 Edition?

A15) Yes, the inspection must match what is required per NFPA 71 2016 Edition, and all other applicable NFPA requirements.  

Q16) Will the inspections for Sprinkler Test & Inspection (Wet Sprinkler System), Standpipe System, and Fire Pump System match up with what is required per NFPA 25 California Amended Edition 2013?  Will the frequency of inspections include both the annual, quarterly, and 5 year inspection?
A16) Yes, the inspections for these systems must match up with what is required per NFPA 25 California Amended Edition 2013 and/or the newest edition.  The frequency of inspections include both annual and quarterly inspections, but not the 5-year inspection as this falls under Title 19.  Title 19 services are not included in this RFQ.

Q17) Will the inspections for Kitchen Hood Test & Inspect match up with what is required per NFPA 101?  Will cleaning be required?
A17) The requirement for Kitchen Hood Test and Inspection has been removed from this RFQ, please see Addendum No.4.
Q18) Will the inspections for Halon System match up with what is required per NFPA 12A?
A18) The requirement for Halon System has been removed from this RFQ please see Addendum No.4.
Q19) On Exhibit D there is a column that lists after hours for testing.  Is this just on the fire alarm system?  Is the after-hours only for the notification devices (horn strobes) or all devices?  Does the afterhours also apply to other systems such as sprinkler?  If so, is it only for the annual where water is being flowed, and not for the quarterly inspections?
A19) After hour testing applies to all devices, including testing of other systems including sprinkler systems, and quarterly inspections.
Q20) Page 10 of the RFQ, Section E (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS), Item 2 states:
Intrusion Alarm Service Report.  Contractor shall provide the County an Intrusion Alarm Service Report no later than 1 week following the inspections/testing.

There is no “testing” done on an intrusion system.  Is it the County’s intent that the report on the monitoring service will be provided after the fire alarm test?

A20) Yes the report on the monitoring service will be provided after the alarm test.  The Contractor shall contact the County immediately if there are any problems with intrusion alarms, phone, or transmitter. 

Q21) Does the County require one document for the entire bid submittal or can there be one PDF per document requested?
A21) The County prefers to receive one PDF document with OCR for the entire bid submittal, this is the most efficient method.
Q22) Are weekly or monthly tests for the fire pumps a part of the scope of this RFQ?
A22) Yes, Fire pump test are to be completed per NFPA standards. 
Q23) Does the County have a SLEB preferred list?
A23) No, the County does not have a preferred list.  However, the County’s SLEB database can be found at the following link: http://acgov.org/sleb_query_app/gsa/sleb/query/slebmenu.jsp
Q24) What is the award criteria?
A24) Page 17 of the RFQ, Section M (AWARD), Item 1 states:
The award will be made to the lowest responsible bidder who meets the requirements of these specifications, terms, and conditions.

Q25) Will bidders have the opportunity to complete a site walk of buildings prior to the bid response due date?
A25) No.  Contractors are to bid per RFQ No. 901570 Exhibits.
Q26) Are there any safety training classes that technicians must attend in addition to the training provided by the Contractor?
A26) The County does not provide safety training classes for Contractors.  Contractors must provide all required safety training for their staff. 

Q27) Does the County intend to award a one-year contract?
A27) No, the County intends on awarding a three year contract.
Q28) Who are the incumbents? 
A28) The current incumbents are AA Acme, Allied, Battalion One, Bay Alarm, Orr Protection, Pacific Signaling, Protection One, RN Security, Sabah International, Sentry, and Siemens. 
Q29) What is the SLEB requirement for this RFQ and is it mandatory?
Bidders not meeting the definition of a small or emerging local business must subcontract with one or more County certified small and/or emerging local businesses for at least twenty percent (20%) of the total bid amount in order to be considered for contract award.  This is a mandatory provision.  For more information about the SLEB program and requirements please see: http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
For purposes of this bid, applicable industries include, but are not limited to, the following NAICS Code(s): 238210, 334290, 423610, and 561621. 
Q30) Is there a bid bond required for this RFQ?
A30) No, a bid bond is not required for this RFQ.
Q31) What are the insurance requirements for this RFQ? 
A31) Please see Exhibit B within the original RFQ for the insurance requirements.
Q32) What is the budget for this project?
A32) The County has not set a budget for this project.
Q33) What is the target award date and the target contract start date?
A33) The Board consideration award date is April 3, 2018.  The contract start date is July 1, 2018.
Q34) How many buildings will need to be serviced for this project?
A34) There are currently 64 buildings that will need to be serviced.  The County reserves the right to add or remove buildings throughout the contract term, and will request separate quotes for the additional buildings when needed.
EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

RFQ No. 901570 – Fire & Intrusion Alarm Services
Below is the Vendor Bid List for this project consisting of vendors who have been issued a copy of this RFQ.  This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm. 

This RFQ Q&A being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes, but is not limited to, contact information for each attendee at the Networking/Bidders
	RFQ No. 901570 - Fire & Intrusion Alarm Services

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Contact Phone
	Address
	City
	ST
	Email

	ACME Security Services
	Steven Harris
	510-483-6584
	1600 Factor Ave.
	San Leandro
	CA
	sharris@locks.com

	AEKO Consulting
	Gboyega Aladegbami
	510-763-2356 x13
	1939 Harrison Street, Suite 420
	Oakland
	CA
	gboyega@aeko.com

	Allied Security Service
	 
	650-871-8959
	130 Produce Ave., #D
	South S.F.
	CA
	contactus@allied24.com 

	Battalion One Fire Protection
	Michael Herbert
	510-653-8075
	14755 Catalina St.
	San Leandro
	CA
	mherbert@battaliononefire.com

	Bay Alarm 
	Delores Nielsen
	510-639-2641
	9836 Kitty Ln.
	Oakland
	CA
	delores.nelson@bayalarm.com

	CalBX
	Jeannie Kwan
	916-277-0740 x141
	 
	 
	 
	jeannie@calbx.com

	JCI / SimplexGrinnell
	Colleen Moschell
	925-381-8360
	6952 Preston Avenue
	Livermore
	CA
	colleen.moschell@jci.com

	J.W. Construction
	Ed Abemadon
	510-697-0770
	P.O. Box 1903
	Oakland
	CA
	edagbe.ea@gmail.com

	Orr Protection Systems
	Bill Yellin
	925-251-0000
	7083 Commerce Cir.
	Pleasanton
	CA
	byellin@orrprotection.com

	Pacific Signaling Systems
	Wilson Powell
	925-223-6675
	5627 Stoneridge Dr., #321
	Pleasanton
	CA
	will@pacificsignaling.com

	Protection One
	Peter Fitch
	925-602-0500
	4090 Nelson Ave., #F
	Concord
	CA
	peterfitch@protectionone.com

	Red Hawk Fire & Security
	David De Leon
	510-438-1300
	4384 Enterprise Place
	Fremont
	CA
	david.deleon@redhawkus.com

	RN Security Co.
	Richard Notzon
	510-786-2767
	1336 W. Winton Ave.
	Hayward
	CA
	rich@rnsecuritycompany.com

	Sabah International
	Lisa Cruz
	925-353-8408
	5925 Stoneridge Dr.
	Pleasanton 
	CA
	lisa@sabah-intl.com

	Sentry Alarm Systems
	Joshua Biehl
	510-763-2727
	330 2nd St., #203
	Oakland
	CA
	jbiehl@sentryalarm.com

	Siemens Building Technologies
	Denise Moore
	510-783-6000
	2525 Barrington Ct.
	Hayward
	CA
	denise.moore@siemens.com

	Siemens Industry, Inc.
	Mehdi Eskandar
	510-589-8132
	25821 Industrial Blvd. Suite 300
	Hayward
	CA
	mehdi.eskandar@siemens.com


1401 Lakeside Drive, Suite 907 ( Oakland, CA 94612
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